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MISSION
L5]{Ean

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited is a non-profit-distributing organisation that is committed
to providing and supervising the provision by others of, .hk and . &3 Internet domain name registration,
resolution and related services in an uninterrupted, effective, customer-centric and sustainable manner.
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Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited
2016 Annual Report




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRS

2016 has been a year of transition. | am pleased to have
witnessed the unwavering commitment of HKIRC in reaffirming its
pledge of embracing change and new initiatives.

While the year under review was marked by uncertainties facing
challenging business environment, HKIRC has been making good
progress in terms of financial stability and stable growth. HKIRC
attained encouraging results in 2016. The Company’s turnover
increased by $5.9 million or 17.7%, to $38.9 million in 2016,
compared with $33.05 million in 2015. We recorded a 56.8%
increase of profit before goodwill impairment and tax, to $15.8
milion in 2016, up from $10.1 million in 2015.

The number of .hk /. & domain name registrations at the end
of 2016 is 360,301. An average growth rate of 16.7% per annum
over the past two years is recorded. Overall, the Company
achieved a sound performance in 2016.

Here is an overview of our key highlights over the last four years:
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HKIRC has been making good progress in
terms of financial stability and stable growth.
HKIRC attained encouraging results in 2016.
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Turnover

EXE

Expenditure plus depreciation

SRS

Profit before goodwill
impairment and tax

FREEiRE R B ATm A

Goodwill impairment loss

BERERR

Income tax

FRSTHER

Profit after goodwill
impairment and tax
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Net assets at year end

AEEE 124,569

108,672 98,571




CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FEHRS

As always, HKIRC will remain cautious towards our financial
management. At the same time, we will also increase our level
of engagement in public mission, industry best practice and
community events.

HKIRC called for a review of the current Registry/Registrar
(RR) Model in 2016 to gauge market insights, enhance existing
operations and to ensure that our operations remain nimble and
applicable to the Hong Kong business environment. We expect
the review can help us manage the country-code top level
domains (ccTLD) of .hk more effectively in adherence to public
interest. An independent consulting firm has been appointed to
conduct the review, and will address possible issues relevant to
our development, including institutional framework of the model,
competitiveness and sustainable growth. Recommendations will be
formulated in the consultation report in 2017.

In 2016, we invested about $2.9 million in a number of projects,
including upgrades to our existing IT infrastructure to improve
service quality, stability and security. At least 50% of the overall IT
spending was used in DNSSEC deployment and network security
enhancement.

Furthermore, in August, we organised the annual Digital
Marketplace Seminar at Cyberport. Themed “Smart City Business
—Shaping Our Future”, the Seminar attracted over 500 participants,
who were eager to gain first-hand market intelligence and explore
business opportunities . We also organised the eighth “Best .hk
Website Awards” which enabled us to recognise and commend
outstanding .hk websites that are good role models for the
business and local community.

In addition to the above events, in 2016, we also arranged two
regular Consultative and Advisory Panel (CAP) meetings in June
and December. CAP members were consulted on matters
including HKIRC's financial health, review of the RR model, Chinese
Domain Names, IPv6 and corporate governance.

The Board of Directors continues to express great confidence
in HKIRC's management team, and our new CEO, Mr Leo LAM.
We believe that under Leo’s leadership and passion for progress,
HKIRC will continue to reach new heights in coming years.

I ' would like to thank the Board of Directors and all our dedicated
staff for their commitment, devotion and diligence that contributed
o the ongoing success of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES

EFERAREEE

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (HKIRC)
is a non-profit-distributing, non-statutory, company limited by
guarantee designated by the Government of the HKSAR to
undertake the administration of Internet domain names under the
"hk’ country code top level domain and its equivalents. HKIRC
provides registration services through its accredited registrars for

domain names ending with .com.hk, . A& . &, .nethk, . 48
#® B, orghk S BB, govhk  BF.EE, eduhk

BB H, idvhk, B A EFH, hkand . & # . Hong Kong
Domain Name Registration Company Limited (HKDNR), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HKIRC, is one of the accredited registrars.

The HKIRC Board of Directors consists of two Directors elected
by Members of the Demand Class, two Directors elected by
Members of the Supply Class, and four Directors appointed by
the HKSAR Government.

EEEBHRETMEREARAR HKRC) REER
AT @EBUTIEENIEARAE ~ IEEE ~ #BR
BRAT  BEREHBMETBRIGEZ (B hk
LKEMARIZEA ) BITBAARR LIF - HKIRC 8
IBER AT RIS IR AL comhk ~. AT . &
7~ nethk L AB5R LB - orghk BB BB
govhk ~ T . B~ edubk ~ L HB LB~ dv.
hk~ BA . B ~ bk X BB REENZEEM
R3S - HKRC E T2 EMRBAR — &BEAT
MABERAR (HKDNR) 2 HE A —E R A A ARk
% o

HKRC EF /A /N\REFMA - HTMAEEA
ERERBEL  MAHARFERMEERES
MAREBRITRERFERE
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Members of the Board of Directors of HKIRC for 2016 are:
2016 FE HKIRC EF/KEWNT

Chairman

xE

BRAMERSEE

Mr. Chan Sai Ming, Simon is the Executive Director, Alternate
Chief Executive and Deputy Chief Executive of Nanyang
Commercial Bank, Limited, with responsibility for business
support, financial management and risk management of the
Bank. Before joining the Bank, he was Deputy General Manager
of Group Audit of BOCHK, with extensive auditing experience
in computer and information technology. Mr. Chan is also a
Director of both Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited and HKICL
Services Limited, and now serves as President of ISACA China
Hong Kong Chapter and Member of the Banking Industry Training
Advisory Committee of the Education Bureau.

Mr. Chan graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and obtained Master's Degrees in Science and Commerce
in Accounting from the University of Ulster and The University
of New South Wales respectively. He is a Certified Information
Systems Auditor and Certified Internal Auditor.

Mr. Simon CHAN Sai Ming

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government IC/TE(T)

BRANBASEAE RF B ERITERATRITESR
REITHRE - BIES RERITHEREE
MHBREREE - MAZITZE > REEEE
FEHREEEERREIRKE  HFREENE
MEHAEBNER TIESE - RELTATER
TREEEERATALEBRTRFEEREE
RABESE - AR > REETREEENRAE
SHEGETEEEDEEREABBERRITHITE

EIEAZESERS -

BRELEZRNBBPRE - BB R
SR EE R AERRMN BB LRSS
BT84 RAZME ERAERT A MEMAER
ZERTAD -
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Deputy Chairman
BIERE

Prof. Erwin HUANG
SRS

(Demand Class {EHZESF)

Professor Erwin Huang is a serial entrepreneur, a leader in a
social enterprise and the elearning field more than 30 years.
Currently, he is Associate Professor and Senior Advisor of The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, President
of Hong Kong Information Technology Federation (HKITF), one
of the largest and respected ICT associations of HK and also
chairs the eLearning Consortium, which is instrumental in driving
Hong Kong's elearning initiative in education reform and using
the power of big data to show the students possibilities. He also
is the Chief Consultant of Business Planning & Non-executive
Director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (Stock: 3882) and Deputy
Chairman & Non-executive Director of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited (Stock: 417).

Deputy Chairman
BIERFE

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung
SRR

BEKIRENE A REBMANE 8578
EHEERNLTE, LEHELXEBREE
TfEiER 30 F - RAELBBE  EBREKRE
AR EERER EEENREEEER &
BBTEEBATE ARERERAT (LH
Mm% :3882) XBEREBREMNERTESER
GBI E (B ) BRAR ( LHiRSE 417) &
ERMIEMTES -

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government IZJiFZ(T)

Mr. Leo Kan is currently a director of Champion Technology
Limited. He was the Chief Executive Officer of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited until he retired in October 2016.
Mr. Kan holds a Master's degree in Business Administration
from Dalhousie University in Canada and a Master's degree
in Economics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He
completed the Oxford Advanced Management Progralmme at the
Said Business School of the University of Oxford.,

Apart from his duties of the Deputy Chairman at the Hong Kong
Internet Registration Corporation Limited, Mr. Kan is also the
Chairman of the Hong Kong Information Technology Industry
Council, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong IT Alliance, as well as
a member of the Design Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Kan is also a
Council Member of the Hong Kong Information Technology Joint
Council and a General Committee Member of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries.

FEREERARTERNRBRARZES - it
BREENREEERARZITRER  BEE
2016 F 10 ARE - BEEREMEKR
Dalhousie University T & BB T2 R INE X
University of Alberta fZBEB 24 » WIEAkE
B 4% K2 Sdid Business School &7 & I8 R 538
72 (Oxford Advanced Management Programme) °

BREBODMEEIMEERGRAR R ERBE
S BELEBRITAETEENMREEBSER
ERENREBER TR  BBRFTREGHE
DEEBENPMEREE T XA ES -
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Deputy Chairman
BlERE

Mr. YOUNG Wo Sang
BIESRE

(Supply Class : till 19 May 2016 IRFEFEMHERF . 2 2016 4£ 5 4 19 Hif)

Mr. Young Wo Sang is currently working as the IT Security
Consultant. He has over 20 years’ experience in the IT industry
and has participated the leading edge IT technologies and
architectures which include information security, computer
forensic, penetration test, network management, storage, internet
architecture and networking. Mr. Young holds the professional
certifications of CISSP, CCSP, CISA, CEl, CIFl, CHFI, ECSA,
CEH, CWNA and CWSP. He was also a founding member of
Professional Information Security Association and had served
as the Chairperson from 2003-04 and 2005-06 and member
of Technical and Engineering Sub-Committee of Senior Citizen
Home Safety Association. He is serving as Exco of Hong Kong
Association of Interactive Marketing, and Treasurer of ISOC-HK.

BMELAERBAEMRTEM - thEFSBB
0 FEEARTE N OB TIELR  SHEAMNE
ARRIEE  BEERRE  SIEE - AEA
A REEE - BEAR  DBEBELRRER
£ o 354 CISSP ~ CCSP + CISA ~CEl ~CIFI »
CHFI~ECSA ~ CEH~ CWNA K CWSP | & # -
BRERBXEENRLHEAIEEE K 2003-04
F % 2005-06 FEERETIREREREH SR
MIRIENMIKE - tMRESEESTHEES
WITERE  LESERERHSRE -
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Member

&

bz ]

Prof. Francis CHIN Yuk Lun

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government EZJiFZ(T)

Professor Chin is a Princeton graduate; Fellow of IEEE, HKIE and
HKACE; Head and Chair Professor of Computing at Hang Seng
Management College; and Emeritus Professor of HKU. He was
the Chair and Founding Head of Computer Science, Associate
Dean of Graduate School and Associate Dean of Engineering at
HKU.

Professor Chin is Chairman of the Process Review Committee
and a HK Museum Expert Advisor. He has served on many
government policy and advisory committees, including Deposit
Protection Board, Trade Development Council, Business
Incubation Panel (STP), IAC and ARC. Professor Chin was Project
Leader of the inquiry into the FIDS-related problems surrounding
the commencement of HK International Airport. During 2001, he
served as the first (interim) CEO of HKDNR.

Member

&

Mr. Eric FAN Kin Man
SEfEsE

(Supply Class ARFSHEHEERE)

BREBAEEENEMTERE BERER
IEEE » HKIE & HKACE Bt - S# BRI EAS
BERBFTERREIARBERBLEREE -
BRBRA BT EBREBTEMRNBRAIETRE
£ - IR SBETEEAEMTERLKTRERR
Fik o

BRHRXBEREAREFERZESER LB EBY
EEXEMENE - thE B EEZEBUTBERE
AEESERE BEFIREZES  HER/
MixEeFREEHE - EMBRLERER  EBR
MERE - 1998 FMRBFBIUEGRAFRIR
BEEA B EARSRINEFRMIIERR
REMFTHIRNA B EETREMIRE < 2007
FRERDEBRLEMERARDEEE—F
(AT ) 1TBUEH: -

Eric Fan, Head of Technical Department at UDomain Web
Hosting Company Limited, has over ten years of IT experience
and leading the company to become market leader in the web
hosting industry. He also strives to promote wireless security and
protect SMEs in Hong Kong from cyber-attacks. He was awarded
the Cyber Security Professionals Awards - Communications
(Silver) by Hong Kong Police Force in 2017 and also became the
honoree of (ISC)? Asia-Pacific Information Security Leadership
Achievements - Information Security Practitioner Category in 2015.
His public positions include Convener of Information Security and
Councilor of HKITF, Vice Chairman of HKISPA Association, Past
Chairman of PISA, Technical and Engineering Sub-Committee
member of SCHSA and volunteer of HKNOG etc.

SERXREESFRERAR MR RARE
FHATFMESFLEBERRITECR I
HEBSFEAAEERERENEXEESR
Bz — - B HREPERE  WREFEHN
ERRZMERE - RIOERTE 2016 PERE
FBIRERT - MBRENEE (B) R8E8% 2015
FE (SO DABEMRFRR (FEREEXRAR)
BEHRBLEE - ABBLE - HRENREEEE
RERAEANEZE - BEEOBMREEERGERS
- BXERRTHBE PISA AIER - REXRE
wER TR MERE & HKNOG HTF -
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Member

RRE

fafEhseE

£ 3416 HE)

Mr. Stephen HO Wai Chung

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government : from 16 March 2016 BFFZ(F : £ 2016

Mr. Stephen Ho is the Chief Executive Officer of CITIC Telecom
International CPC Limited and the President of China Enterprises
ICT Solutions Limited. Mr. Ho carries with him more than 30
years of extensive industry experience. He served as the
President and Chair on the Board of Governors of the US Pacific
Telecommunications Council (PTC) for 2014 & 2015, the Chairman
of the Communications Association of Hong Kong (CAHK) since
2012 and one of the advisory committees of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC) since 2013. Mr. Ho also serves
as a committee member of IT Management Committee of Hong
Kong Management Association (HKMA) since 2012 and the Vice-
Chairman of IT Management Club of HKMA since 2015. In 2016,
he also served as a Founding Board Member of the Smart City
Consortium (SCC), one of the members of the McGill University’s
Advisory Group in Asia in 2016/2018, and also a member of the
Advisory Board of the Department of Electronic and Computer
Engineering (ECE) of the HKUST.

Member

RE

Mr. Felix SEE Chi Kwok
MBS E

H 16 HIF)

fAIEREEEPEREEN (EERIM) BRA
AITHEREPLEESBERITERAREE -
AIEEREBB=TFNESEEHELR - 2014
2015 FEFEXRAAFLEESEFEES PTO
BEREE - 2012 FRHEETERNERS
(CAHK) EBER 2013 FRRHIETEEZIRER
(HKTDC) ER BRI RBEERERE - 2012
FREHEETBEEEERE HKVA) BRRRE
BEESEES » WK 2015 FE A HKMA &,
R EHEMATLEIER - 2016 EERERB A
BEHHHE SCOMAIEES « £EBAZ (0
ZR) BNEBEEFREZHAEZESRE - KEB
REREEFRAIESR T RRRERNEZESEE -

(Appointed by the HKSAR Government: till 16 March 2016 B{fFE(E : & 2016 4E 3

Felix has over 20 years working experience in multiple industries
in Greater China. He was appointed as director of HKIRC in
2012. Formerly, he was the Managing Director of HP Hong Kong
SAR Limited, the President & Managing Director of HP Taiwan,
the Executive Director and Deputy CEO of Tradelink Electronic
Commerce Limited and the Chief Operating Officer of Miramar
Group Hong Kong. He is an MBA graduate from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a holder of Bachelor
of Science degree in Computer Engineering from the University
of Hong Kong.

BEEEEZRRPEL RS ETEIFER
ZHAF o R 2012 FREERT B EREMN
EHARAANES - Zal > thBHEEEEE
ERAKE  BEREESER  E2BEENT
EXRBEITBRRBNZEERENEREBZE
BE - MELEFBEBENERBIEEERLTLK
EREREBHIREESL -
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Member
&
Miss Ping WONG

FE=F/IE
(Demand Class {EHZE5RF)

Ping has been working in ICT industry over 15 years as a
business development and marketing professional. Ping is a
serial female entrepreneur and currently the CEO of EVENTION.
She also contributes to the Internet community by taking
volunteer work of being Director and Startup Working Group
Convener of Internet Society Hong Kong and Director of Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. She is the Elected
Member, Information Technology Subsector, Election Committee
of HKSAR Government (2016).

She is a columnist for multiple well-known media, and writes on
ICT, the Internet and entrepreneurship, including the Hong Kong
Economic Times, Hong Kong Economic Journal, and Tech in
Asia and more. She has penned an article for international news
network CNN. Through these efforts, she brings the public the
latest news on the Internet and its applications, and inspiring
stories of successful entrepreneurial journeys.

Member

&

Mr. Lento YIP Yuk Fai
EBRESEE

TERNEEMRRBAEES T AF B8
EBEBRRLTIGHERE - iAEERAZEE - BER
A% — EVENTION 1TEABE: - A
OBREERRE  RRad 5B EneAaE KAl
FNABEARBEOBBAMEEERATE
E - MREBFITHRERMG 2016 FREEXS
2 (EMRERR) £8 -

IZRAZHERERBEENIERFEE, AZ
MEERERE (BEBKERR) (8, ~ Tech in
Asia & RIEDZHEBENBE - BBRLAIZE
HREN - B RBEEER CNN BEXE 8D
RN RERLERER  DURAIZEENKE
SHABAZ  BIABTEHENRBA -

(Supply Class: from 19 May 2016 REFEHERE : B 2016 4 5 F 19 HEE)

Mr. Lento Yip is one of the current directors representing
Supply Class Members. He has previously served the board of
HKIRC and was the first director of HKIRC who advocated for
transforming .hk to the current Registry-Registrar model,

Lento is the current Chairman of the Hong Kong Internet Service
Providers Association. He assisted the HKISPA and its members
in promoting an open market for development of the Internet,
contributed to making HK as one of the most connected cities.
He also assisted the HKISPA in establishing Codes of Practices
to protect the interest of the public and service providers. Mr,
Yip is also a member of the E-Commerce Expert Group of the
Economic Development Commission of the HKSAR and member
of the Election Committee of the IT sector.

ERER 2016 FRERMRBHER S 28 HKIRC
BEE - BANTERERBEFRSE HKRCES
g REREARMEZESNERE - t2FE—AL
HEB) 4 hk B A& IR 1T Registry-Registrar 1Y
HKIRC &% -

RRERAHEBLBMEMERHIER - binsh
e EE— RS - BRSHEENE
PEBRREBRHRR I RE KA — - i
EWBIHERULBEETR - DUREQARLIL B
IR ER RIS - EREDREFBBUTKE
BREZESETHBEANKELLERERS
SEMBEAE -
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ALUDIT COMMITTEE AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
myzxaﬂé-h Etﬂfjﬂ-hs

Under the Board of Directors, there are an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee. Members of the Committees
are as follows:

EERCTME—ERBZEGL—EHITERES - REGKEWT ¢

Audit Committee REEEH
Mr. Felix SEE Chi Kwok (Chairman) (till 16 March 2016) MEESEE (EF) (E20164F 3 F 16 HIE)
Mr. Stephen HO Wai Chung (Chairman) (from 7 July 2016) AEREE (EE)(H20164F7H7HE)

12

Prof. Francis CHIN Yuk Lun BRI
Mr. Eric FAN Kin Man SEE L
Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung AR RALE

Miss Ping WONG (till 26 July 2016)
Mr. YOUNG Wo Sang (till 19 May 2016)

Executive Committee

Mr. Simon CHAN Sai Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Eric FAN Kin Man

Prof. Erwin HUANG

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung

Miss Ping WONG

Mr. YOUNG Wo Sang (till 19 May 2016)

TER/NA (20164 7 H 26 AHif)
BNESRE (22016454 19 Hif)

HITRER

BRABAASLCA ()

ek via s

HEKBIR

MR REE

FEFR/E

BMELLE (ZF2016FE5H 19 HIF)




CONSLLTATIVE AND ADVISORY PANEL

EREHEHE==E§

oDOD SZE%

Advisors from different stakeholder groups are invited to sit on
the Consultative and Advisory Panel (CAP) to provide advices
and suggestions to HKIRC. This is to ensure that their views and
needs are heard and considered when HKIRC formulates policies
and plans for the administration of .hk domain. List of members

on the CAP are:

HKIRC R R RRIN BB ARBNEE S
LRERSESSRENER - [HERRATR
HETER hk e EMERNRERAES &
EEEFHENERREE - HHEEANES
BT

Dr Sunny CHAI Ngai Chiu
BiEELT

Director, DynaSys Solutions Ltd
Nominated by The Federation of Hong Kong Industries

HEBLREERES

Mr Henry CHEUNG
IRFESRSE

Chief Executive Officer, Thales Transport and Security Hong Kong Limited
Nominated by The Institution of Engineering and Technology Hong Kong
REL (FH) BRAR

HIEMEHESEEIGRE

Mr Sutton CHEUNG
RESRE

Chief Technology Officer, Citic Telecom International Holdings Ltd
Nominated by Communications Association of Hong Kong
PEERENERGRAR

HESBNEHSRE

Mr Frank CHOW Kai Fat
BRI L

Head of Information Security and Risk Control, Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Nominated by Professional Information Security Association
EFRT (T ) BRAR

HEBEXENREHERA

Mr CHUNG Pui Hong, Davey
EmREE

Deputy Government Chief Information Officer (Policy and Industry Development), Office of the
Government Chief Information Officer, HKSARG

Nominated by Office of the Government Chief Information Officer
EBRAITHEBAT — BUN &R RS AT

HBUT SRR AR IATIRS

Mr Brian HO Chung Choi
Al 7 54

Senior Business Development Manager, Traxcomm
Nominated by Hong Kong Internet Service Providers Association

HEBOBRERBHER TSRS

Dr HO Pui Tak
famisiE L

Director of IT Services, The University of Hong Kong
Nominated by The University of Hong Kong
BEBRE

HEBRERES

Mr Tong LEE Chang Pui
TIRIESE

General Manager, Information Technology Resources Centre Limited, The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service

Nominated by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

BB SRBH S

HEBHERBFEHSIRE

Mr Steven K LEE
TEESLE

US Lawyer/Hong Kong Solicitor
Nominated by The Law Society of Hong Kong (Technology Committee)
HEBEMERREE SRS

Mr Sunny W K LEE
FENKE

Vice-President (Administration), City University of Hong Kong
Nominated by The Hong Kong Management Association
BB HAE

HESEEEERRIRS

13
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CONSLLTATIVE AND ADVISORY AANEL

NS E

Mr Ricky NG Chi Wah
REFERE

Head, Information Technology Division, Consumer Councll
Nominated by Consumer Councll

HEEEZES

HHBERESIRS

Ms Susanna S C SHEN
BilEE

Head of Corporate Information Technology, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited
Nominated by The Hong Kong Computer Society

EBPEREFERAT

HEBBKESRS

Mr Alan K T SO
eSS E

Assistant Computer Officer, ITSC, The Chinese University of Hong Kong
Nominated by The Chinese University of Hong Kong

BRPXKRE

HEBRIAREBES

Ms Agnes TAN
FREZSSE/)ViE

Vice President, Legal, Regulatory & Carrier Affairs, Wharf T & T Limited
Nominated by Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
NEBAERAT

HEBERSIES

Mr Wilson WONG
ERERE

General Manager, IT and Business Process, Hong Kong Productivity Council

Nominated by Hong Kong Computer Emergency Responses Team Coordination Centre (HKCERT)
BEBLENRER

HBEBEMR LB WA R OIRS

Mr Eric YEUNG

Managing Director, FlexWorkflow Limited
Nominated by The Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business

BERELE R TERBRAR

AEBH/NEPEAT SRS

Head, Regulatory 1, Office of the Communications Authority
Mr S KYIU Nominated by Office of the Communications Authority
phiRRELE é%ﬁ.:ﬂ%ﬁ‘%*iﬁ!i%%?’\f

HEBBNEBEERRA
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.hk REGISTRATION
.hk 51

HKIRC's key mandate is to provide top quality .hk domain name HKRCHFET KRR OBATHEHREEDN
registration services for the Internet community. One of the hk AT MR - MEMETKAEFRIENE

indicators of our performance is the number of .hk registrations. FR—{EE1E -
Types of .hk and . &#& Domain Names .hk X . &S HR5ER

The types of domain names available for registration are the FEECRE 2015 4F - A IEFT AR E I R T AT
same as those for the year 2015. We have two types of .hk and £ehk .58 BELZEELERE — ERES
. &B# domain names — Specific and Generic domains. KBAEm4 -

The table below illustrates the types and number of .hk and MUTFIERZ hk KBS B2ERINER 2016

& # domain name registered as of 31 December 2016: 12 B 31 HILA:EME

.com.hk 118,786 | . /AR . &E 9,294
.edu.hk 2,490 | . BB . BB 247
.gov.hk 590 | . T .57 291

Specific .hk / . Bt ooy L0 i

.hk X% . &E 13

— S Jddv.hk 535 | .[EA.BH 50
nethk 197 | @4 . BE 113
oorg.hk 4,959 | A4 . BB 841

Generic .hk / . &F# ‘ ==

EF kR B me English .hk 206,195 | . &b 15,713

Table 1 - Types and numbers of domain names registered as of 31 December 2016

FIR—: REGRERINEMERZE 2016 F£12 A 31 H1E

Total Registrations 4 E
There has been a healthy growth in the total number of registered UTAERFR > SZaMEsEmatt+HonN—8
domain names in the past ten vears, as illustrated by the table REBFEER -
below.
400,000

373,934 360,301

350,000
300,000 T
242,173 ,
250,000 120020
200,000 183231 199,923
’ 173,751
152,405
150,000
100,000
50,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Table 2 — Total number of .nk and . &7 registrations (as of 31 December 2016)
PRk R EE BAEMEE (ME2016F 12831 HIE)
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The total number of .hk domain name registrations was 360,301,
a slight drop from 373,934 from a year earlier. Despite the total
volume was down 3.65% in 2016, the overall .hk base has still
expanded by 32.06%, a big leap on its total registration with an
incremental 87,468 domain registrations as compared to 2014,
We would keep up with growth momentum in domain name
registration in 2017.

Registered but non-utilised .hk and . & & domain
names

Up to 2016, the total number of .hk domain name registrations
was 360,301, Some of the registered domain names may not
actually be put to use (i.e. web address pointing to website, email
address). The table below shows the proportion of registered .hk
domain names that were known to be unused.

722016 F 0 i3 2 W KRS A W E KA F
373,934 @M TZE 360,301 @ - BEFME
£ 2016 £ E Bk 3.65%, {BAIE 2014 F3 M
87,468 f& » #R3EE 32.06% - HMHE 2017
FREESLAMENERES -

BRCTERMERN .hk X . BE 158

BZE 2016 4F » hkig A2 F 2% 360,301 @ -
BIEENEBCHIHBLRE KA (—REHE
RRMEmREERE) - BFAARLUTIIRT #2)
BEFEZAOEEMUBHESEAREES -

Month/Year | Specific Domain Name Specific Domain Name Generic Domain Name
Bl & (excluding .idv.hk and . fBA . &#) | (idvhkand . BA &%) (hk and . &%)

HRAFEA SRER BRER

(ABHE dvhk & . BA . &%) (idv.hk B2 ABA . &%) (hk & . &%)
12 /2007 10.97% 51.98% 37.52%
12 /2008 12.39% 44.35% 28.47%
12 /2009 13.67% 38.44% 28.37%
12/ 2010 14.94% 61.87% 23.53%
12/ 2011 156.84% 61.50% 238.15%
12/ 2012 16.82% 62.57% 22.28%
12/ 2013 17.28% 48.71% 22.88%
12/ 2014 19.98% 44.84% 22.02%
12/ 2015 18.62% 46.49% 18.85%
12/ 2016 20.46% 52.39% 10.12%

Table 3 — Statistics on non-utilised .nk and . &7 domain name

FIR= BB hk & . BBRERGANMETER

Overall, more registered .hk domain names are likely to put
to use, achieved by 86.48% as compared to 81.35% in 2015,
This increase is mainly due to contribution from Generic .hk
domain name markets outside Hong Kong, in particular from the

B 8 86.48% Bty hk K . B 34
RAARELERER - EAREERINGS  KilR
PERENE P HEETHNERSEZETREZN

Mainland, has increased.

However, in 2016, more specific .nk and . & # domain names
are not in use as compared with Generic .hk and . & # domain

names. This shows that more registrants of the Specific .hk and
& # have registered the names for the purpose of reserving

them rather than actually putting them to use.

*Includes all types of .hk and . & covering specific and generic domain names.

*BEMEENN hk & . &8EE (EREAMEREA)

JEED 0 8 2015 FREMRIEA 81.35% M

PRI £ 2016 £ > hk o & SRERHER
BRABERERARE  RREZZRBANE
MEIABRZEELERMARERBERZFES -
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Registrar Accreditation Program

Registrar Accreditation Program was launched in 2011, with
an aim to encourage fair competition, enable more choices to
customers and ultimately increase number of .hk registration.
Customers are free to choose their preferred registrar who is
able to offer one-stop Internet services to meet their specific
needs. In 2016, there was one registrar accredited in Hangzhou,
China, making a total of 31 registrars. Of those, seven were from
mainland China, seven in local market and 17 from overseas.

Registrar Awards and Rebate Scheme

The Best Registrar Awards organised by HKIRC in 2011 honour
and celebrate the outstanding achievements of accredited
registrars who contributed the most promising registration
numbers throughout the year. The Awards Presentation Ceremony
is held in conjunction with Spring Dinner every year. In 2016, a

total of seven awards were created, winners were as follows:

Best Registrar Awards (Hong Kong)
Gold Prize :

Speedy Group Corporation Limited

Silver Prize :

Eranet International Limited

Bronze Prize :

UDomain Web Hosting Company Limited

Best Registrar Awards (Overseas)

Gold Prize :

Chengdu West Dimension Digital Technology Co., Ltd.

Silver Prize :

Shanghai Meicheng Technology Information Development Co., Ltd.
Bronze Prize :

Instra Corporation Pty Ltd.

Registrar of The Year
Chengdu West Dimension Digital Technology Co., Ltd.

st AR FSEER o 51 El
EMREHRBATHBER 2011 FHH - SER
BATHS AEFRHUESRE HERE
hkSAEMBIRA - BEFATREARE - A6
BIEAENEMRE AR RS - 1
2016 4F + H{FE — AR AREHIN A MRS
AN - AHE 3 REMREE - HFE 7 E
RERBEAE 7 BRSEMRBER 17 @
RSN RIS -

=1 i AR 755 e 2% Az BB E T2

HKIRC 74 2011 FE BRI xR M AR IS P 88 0 3%
Bk EMRBEAERE—FR  BEAZBEE
CENEE N WENEFHSWRE -5F &
MRS, BRBEENTEZBRERRFE
17N 2016 EHLBER 7 EEE » SEATRKE
mE

RERMEEDS (&)
£

BEEEERAR

i

R EHERERAR
$F2E :

EHERERAR

miEEMARFESE (85)
2

BEB MBS R R RAR]
fRiE
EBEEMEREREREFRAR
e

Instra Corporation Pty Ltd.

EFERERMRBEALE
AT BB EIRAR
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Furthermore, HKIRC kicked off the Registrar Rebate Scheme
(Scheme) in 2014, aiming at motivating registrars worldwide to
boost the growth of .hk domain name registration and promote
Dk in their respective markets. Rewards include cash rebates and
cooperative marketing funds. All accredited registrars took part in
the Scheme, in which the overseas registrars brought over 50%
of the total registration in the year. Over HK$1 million cooperative
marketing fund was successfully generated and spent on .hk
promotional campaign in 2016,

Speedy Group Corporation Limited received the Gold
Prize of Best Registrar Awards in Hong Kong market.
RREEBRATLE 2016 FRiEFMBRIEHE
(&E) &8 -

Chengdu West Dimension Digital Technology Co., Ltd.
received the Registrar of the Year and the Gold Prize
of Best Registrar Awards in overseas market.

B EBIE R A RA R S 2016 FRET

Besh » HKIRC T SEMIEIETE) ) R 2014 £E58
RHEAT © B AEDN T 2 IREE M AR B R E P30
4 LA bk BT Pk ERENRE - 5

BeRRSE R LTHEEFTERA - 2016 £E :

8 HKIRC B ATAYEE AR P19 B 2 At &l -

EF';‘%%‘iﬂﬁ}%ﬁ%@Fﬁmiﬁﬁ’ﬂaﬁﬂi%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&

UL WRIHITE R — BB BTG FHEEL
HEHERE hk 154 o

Winners of Best Registrar Awards 2016 with the
award presenters at HKIRC's Spring Dinner.

2016 FREZMRB RS IR HKRC HEH
FHREREEAR -

MR%RE O 8K 2016 FERFRET

TARFSFIAEE

Registrars in Hong Kong

i\;hk Y i hostmg;{

speed

Yo/

Registrars outside Hong Kong

united @ domains

Bt e

www.tnet.hk

&, ascio [ navelB] [Sofenames]

S B MRRE
(@ NICENIC HUYI
E BN
E=m
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gBﬁJEE ==z CUIODNS
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FEEZR

HKIRC is committed to serving the Internet community and
promoting the use of .nk domain name across different sectors.
During the past year, a number of activities and initiatives for .hk
and . &8 domain names were carried out by HKIRC as follows:

“2016 Digital Marketplace — Smart City Business -
Shaping Our Future” Seminar

The “2016 Digital Marketplace — Smart City Business — Shaping
Our Future” (DMP) seminar was held in August 2016. Stepping
into its 8" year, the DMP seminar focused on the discussions
on innovation and technology business, its challenges and
opportunities that will impact on the future of smart city
development of Hong Kong.

Guest speakers from MTR, PwC Advisory Services, Future
Impact Lab Limited, The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
JOS, Realmax Hong Kong, Smart City Consortium, Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Limited as well as Octopus Cards
Limited were invited to share their views and experience on
various topics, such as robotics, P2P Mobile Payment, social
listening, etc.

The full-day seminar gathered over 500 participants and kept
them abreast of the latest trend and technology related to smart
city business.

HKIRC 2070 AR 75 BB AR +L B - HEB) AR [R) SR AU 2
A hk g - WBEA—F  HKRC EREMR L2
EARDEE - #EE bk K. BB BA TR
RapZ e

2016 /S - BE "EHIWMH.
WiE  fatE

"2016 BT - W TEBHEH . FE B
A& 2016 £ 8 ART - BAZ 8 E  Hiaig
TEESTHER "EBET ) BETENRE
MAHRE « A RA BT KRR H TSR
BRATBHTNLE -

BEREAREANRTE  BFEEHEKERAR
Z Rk ~ Future Impact Lab ~ FEHSTARE
JOS IR ERAR - BEEEEHHE S

EESBEEERAT  LEEBRERA
AERERNZELIZRBNER - THERR
FREE  ERENE PP REA EREMA
M EMBRES -

RREAMNEER T HEE 00 RESAL  —
Y T BB ) NRMRRRRNHSEE -
ERF-FHHEN  LMFTEEHABE -

The DMP seminar provided a platform for local businesses, SMEs, and ICT experts to exchange views and explore the underlying opportunities in smart city.

HIEHISMAE OVMP) RAMATR » PNERENANEEREE—EEHRIATE - KRR RREEHH PIEERE -
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Survey on “Would Smart Technologies Smarten  (EaeRY - FEBOE TEEMH,? )
up Hong Kong?” GESEEE
In order to shed more lights on what smart city means to Hong RIBTEEMRERE "EEH™, WEE

Kong people and to unveil the business opportunities for the ISEES ?ﬁﬂﬂtﬂlﬁtﬂﬂ—_ﬁmfﬁﬁ’]?‘]% o HKIRC 7£
local community, HKIRC conducted an online survey titled “Would 2016 F 7 AT Y —HER (TRl — &5
Smart Technologies Smarten Up Hong Kong?” in July 2016. With \%F"JE TEEHM., ? ) WRLMAEHEAST - BR

a total of 1,322 responses from local internet users received, over HE 1,322 ZRMERLH > SRRBER
50% think it is important for the government to transform Hong 50% E’deﬁ%mutﬂﬁfh%iﬁﬁﬁxﬁtﬁ =51
Kong into a smart city. M, FELEEE -

An Overview of Smart City Survey Report:
BEPHASHERME

WIOLLD SMART TE[!HN[ILI]EIES SMARTEN LIA HONG KONG?
Beeilx - SBEMDE "ER1Nm. ?

MEEERERER - (RERTF 715 ?

Are you prepared for a smarter Hong Kong?

Most recalled Smarter City policies

E/ANNESHHBER

Above 60% of the respondents heard of “Government Wi-Fi Program”

60% U EXenEBISE T EBBUF Wi Fi@stEl

@ Above 26% heard of "Energizing Kowloon East”
269 DI EXehE R TEEEER

EI Above 20% heard of “Digital 21 Strategy”
20% LI EZerEBiEe TEIE 21 ) ERHR
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Public Education is required

SNELREE

About 80% of the respondents do not know much about the
initiatives driven by Hong Kong Government on Smart City

#) 80% ZanEHBITHEES BRAE BHHNRERNRNS

Above 35% think Smart Government Services should be improved

35% LI EX S ERBRAEZBNRBHEERE

Above 50% think Hong Kong is not smart enough
50% U EXRFERRBBEAATENL

®00

Smart City products are used by Hong Kongers
EEANEANEERTER

Smart Economy

aE2KE

Over 70% use 2-3 times per week

E.g. NFC (Near Field Communication) service, e-Banking,
Freelance jobs matching

B 10% ZhESEFER 2-3 K

BIF + NFC (ARSEBEMARBINEAT ) ~ A8 LIREF - BB S

Smart Transport
BERE

About 80% use 2-3 times per week

E.g. Location-based services (e.g. GPS), Vehicle booking Apps
(e.g. GoGoVvan, Uber)

3T 80% XHEEBMFER 2-3 K

BT RBEARE (H40 : GPS) ~ FERNE T ERERRER

(40 © GoGoVan, Uber)
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Smart Living
a o

More than 75% use 2-3 times per week

E.g. e-Health systems, Accessible technology, Wearable devices
BB 5% ZEhESAMER 2-3 K

BIF  BiEEARA  MEREEAT - IRBARE

Smart Government

BEI

More than 70% use 2-3 times per month

E.g. data.gov.hk, Tellme@1823, GovHK

BB 70% ZhEFAMER 2-3 )

BIF - BER—#E -~ Telme@1823 FHRERRERN - HBBUT— B

© © 00 0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000

BEANE—EEEZEH

Hong Kongers want a Smarter City

Hong Kongers think a Smart City can:
BEADBLSEEWHOEE :

72N

71 .5% _@_ 65.7% _@_ 56.1%

Provide free city Wi-Fi Adopt smart technologies Enable smart urban
access in daily lives planning
RERE Wi E ERAE RN BB SRS
AE4EER
- ..

Hong Kongers wish to enjoy:

BEANHMEESWHAETR

79.6. @ 77.4. @ 62.4.

Save time Enhance quality of life Promote green living

A RIEEER HEEARELETE

@ © © © 0 0 0000000 000000000000 0000000000000 000000000000

® 0 0000000000000 000000 000000000 000000000000 00000000000 0000000000000 0000000 o
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ERERHHIREAE

Massive business opportunities in Smart Technologies

Over 70% of the respondents are interested in Smart
Technologies in a near future. For those who are willing to spend
11% or above of their monthly incomes, they would like to spend
the most on Smart Healthcare and Smart Education out of the
following types of Smart Technologies®. It implies a massive
business potential for our startups and business community.

1B 70% My 5h B B/ AR AL sER R
BB - HRAEEEENX LETEERAA 1%
NELHNZTHE > AR TEERZNESER
MHBAEMIE* - ERRELENESERIA
TSR SEAL B 2R BE AP -

Smart Healthcare/Education 38 2 °
EEBEENHE n %

o0 00000 A Smart Living

BEXE 37 . 6%

°

°

°

°

°
Smart Safety 31 ce0000e
=F e %

o0 00000 @ sgn:.%a%g;nance 29.2%

;r%;ihéobility 29% tececee

*The above is based on the monthly income group (HK$20,000-
HK$39,999), which represents 33.5% of the respondents.

P EERIBEA NS $20,000 F $39,999 M HE BT

Smart Utility 27 7
BEgER = %

5 HMEPTERTER 33.5%.
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The “Best .hk Website Awards 2016”

The “Best .hk Website Awards” was held annually to recognise
and commend outstanding .hk websites from different sectors
in the local Internet community. Unlike many other website
awards competitions, the winners are not selected solely on
design, but how well the winners use new technologies in their
website development in order to serve, engage and interact
with their audiences. Most importantly, the size of the awarding
oganisations or web traffic is not a key consideration in judging.
The finalists came out from a very rigorous assessment, covering
initial screening, public voting, initial assessment and final vetting.

This year, more than 450 entries were received under four award
categories: “Commercial”, “Non-commercial”, “Government
Departments” and “LegCo Members”. Assessments were
conducted by the panel of judges based on the four judging
criteria, including overall design and functionality, engagement,
use of social media and accessibility.

2016 FE "&R{E .hk 51

—E—EH TR kB, BEREAMA
TR SHEER hk B BB IR - 1518
EERREMARE LR - BT 5 HE RS
Hoh - BEEENVERZHRBMAERAFRRE
SEFEL  NMBABSIREFENRE - 5
EE2EB/A ~ REFERN - B BETAR
SOAEESARNBERBENRE  HES

Mub R VAR —WBRENTERE  BEOE
NFIRRE ~ ERIFTEMRALTE -

SERIFHLEEB 450 ERE2E - M2ERY
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%@@@%ﬂ SRR TR r?F?ﬁ%
Mo TBUSERFIME . & TIEEEEM - FTE
E & Ak BB R A SR MF EE)J&J\I?E =H
AR R S R B B S IR R TV -

Winners from “Best .hk Website Awards 2015" were applauded during the Award Presentation Ceremony in April 2016.
"2015 FfE hk #8588 | RISEEER 2016 4F 4 B HE B HETESSERR -
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Expert Sharing

Through the active participation in seminars, conferences and
sharing groups, HKIRC has developed a close relationship with
experts in various industry sectors. HKIRC was frequently invited
and engaged in speaking opportunities to exchange views on
domain name security aspects, such as the Cyber Security
Conference 2016 cum Formation of Cyber Security Alliance
organised by Hong Kong Information Technology Federation
(‘HKITF) in May 2016, the seminar of Intellectual Property Rights
Protection on the Interet in June 2016 as well as the Counterfeit
Medicines and Medical Devices Seminar in September 2016
which were both organised by Hong Kong Customs, and the
seminar about e-commerce security for the "No Fakes Pledge'
Scheme organised by Intellectual Property Department in
October 2016. In December 2016, HKIRC also participated in
Network Security Seminar of 2016 Taiwan Internet Forum held by
TWNIC to introduce the DNS-related attacks and domain name
security, and gained better understanding on the internet security
landscape.

HEXA=E

HKIRC ZBEMS ERHERNRNE SRS
B8/ BARRANERELZINE
% - HKRC REWRBHREBSE - BARD
FEREBREANREHEE  PIFIE 2016 &
5 ABEBEMBHREE (HITF) £y 2016
MR R2BEEMEL2HE  5—HE A
/BRI BITE 2016 4F 6 A1 9 AL A R
EE CAEEE LT R REENNERESR
g DIRTE 2016 4F 10 A HAIBERE B
# TIERRIEEAGE | sTBIE TR RS
R2016 F 12 B ' HKRC 2 H A E M B A A
BEREREMRRC (TWNIC) B a R
T MBI EBRLL (ONS) MEBEKBEF X
REAL2NEE  WHFERERZERIE -

Cyber Security
Conference

e0lb

Experts exchanged views and shared the best practice on managing cyber security in the Cyber Security Conference 2016 cum Formation of Cyber Security Alliance.

BRMK 2016 WEL2FEENZRE2HEFDT  AEBRELR2NEE  PZRBEIRRKENEERE -

HKIRC joined a semniar organised by Hong Kong Customs to share our experience of combating Internet crimes through collaborative effort with law enforcement agencies.

HKIRC 28EHEBEEERIMAE - D ZEPEREETITRRERITICR -
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HhlE KBRS 1F

HKIRC BE 2| BB SR ET 3R R - BfIEE
BB S 2 BB R R I & - DUEIR
EERSEERREED  BRibERBRLNE
BRER  LREBEANGEESNEBETHTR -
2016 £ » HKIRC E2 HpBIFR#E KEBaE

Regional and International Co-operation

The HKIRC noted the internet world keeps evolving, the
management has been progressively participating in regional and
international co-operation and fora, ensuring to adopt the global
best practice on effectively managing internet domain name
resource and respond the market timely to the ever-changing

28

needs. We have been involving in the following international
organisations and associations:

ICANN

Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers
(“ICANN") is a non-profit-making multi-stakeholder organisation
headquartered in Los Angeles. Its primary mission is to
maintain the security and stability of the Internet Protocol
addressing and Internet domain name system, and to
administer the allocation of Internet Protocol addresses and
top-level domains. HKIRC has sent delegates to attend the
ICANN meetings in many years in the past. HKIRC staff also
participated in different working groups such as ccNSO
(Country Code Names Supporting Organisation) of ICANN.

CDNC

Chinese Domain Name Consortium (“CDNC”) is an
independent non-profit organisation to facilitate the
communication and coordination regarding the technical
standards and policies of the Chinese Domain Name System.
It was founded by CNNIC (China Internet Network Information
Center), TWNIC (Taiwan Network Information Center), HKIRC
and MONIC (Macao Network Information Center) in 2000.
HKIRC attended the CDNC meeting held in Hainan in March
2016.

APTLD

Asia Pacific Top Level Domain Association ("APTLD”) is a
regional body consisting of the ccTLD managers in the
Asia Pacific region. Its mission is to facilitate exchange
of knowledge and experience to help ccTLD managers
achieve world best practices. HKIRC has been supporting
continuously part of the secretariat work of APTLD.

ICANN

BHEIE 2 AR RRREC A B (ICANN)
REERER OB R — BB IR R A -
HERBEBELZHFMNE  ICANN NEZFdp
RAEFEOBMARQMIE (IP Address) K15
BRENRENRDEE  DINIREC BB
Rt IR % F TAF - HKIRC B X
ZEHFRERREFE ICANN BITHEE -
HKIRCE T B2 RAMBE R A RAK
(ccNSO) EM AR LA NEHRHRF AR =

o

CDNC
P2 HFABA S (CDNC) BR—EBIK
JEEFAER  BEREP LR RATIMZ
BB ERAER - BaEh CNNIC(H
R EEEREMTL ) TWNIC(EBIEAS
AR EDR B0 ) HKIRC & MONICCGRPSH
BRI AL ) K 2000 FEHRELT o HKIRC
2016 4 3 ANEREEREY CONC WRE °

APTLD

DRBEMZZAS (APTLD) H—EEM
A HEEXRBDAER ccTLD EEE -
APTLD Wy an —IEEBR A ccTLD EEREW
HE R ASEREOM - LUZZ MR EEKF
HKIRC 788 —E X% APTLD MITME R TIE -
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Community Outreach

HKIRC took part in various community outreach programmes
which were designed to benefit the community while providing
educational experiences for students. These programmes are
supported and driven by our strategic views on encouraging
better understanding and use of Internet and related technology
in our society.

In 2016, the management representative was invited by the
Association of I.T. Leaders in Education ("AITLE") to share the
information on Internet security with about 5600 primary and
secondary school teachers. HKIRC also provided the guidelines
of managing .hk domain name specifically to the school teachers.

HKIRC also shared insights on .hk domain name security at
the event organised by Lingnan University. The students, who
were mostly from the large corporations or government officials,
attended the workshop to learn about the first-hand intelligence
and case studies that cover multiple aspects of the internet crime
ecosystem.

Apart from the focus on internet domain related, HKIRC
proactively collaborate with Youth Mechanic Association of Hong
Kong (“YMHK”) for Youth Robot Joint School Competition in
December 2016. HKIRC strongly supported it as the programme
helped cultivate youth’s most important qualities in creativity,
resilience and perseverance through using technologies to build
robotics in various stages of the competition. There were over
200 students from 56 schools participated in this programme.
We were one of the officiating guests to witness the finalists
working very hard to win over others.

g e »JI:

FLEHER

HKIRC +2ERHHER - FXHERELETE
@B TF > BRKE HKIRC VRIS MRS
FET BERLERZEARMRES SRt E
BIINRY AR RAABI R ER -

%2016 & EREAXREENMNEABEMTB
& ("ATLE") VB » 8249 500 & F/NE AT
DEMBEE2NEN » W HIFLHARIF 2R
YRR kA ERIESINER -

HKIRC ZR2Izn %8R A2 - W ELZR B R KRBT
HPINEL  EIFEH L2E KkIBERZL2NE
7 RARFNERBLERNERERES 225
—FHBENRERELSF -

BRY BEEEANEEEE HKRC R LED
FHEAER - HKRC EFBESOERBTIEW
(YMHK) &1F » 2NXFEBTDERM AR
RE > BBt fIERRRERERB AL ST L
BREIAE - HPEEFEIFNRIE BN
BRFF o SEENHSEIZRE 56 HIERM 200 ZE4E S
e HKRC EERESHP— U EREE LT
EAREBEZESLE2OLR - BEBAFL -

HKIRC was one of the officiating guests and showed our support on the local youth development programme.

HKIRC ERESEN—AERTEE @ 2HXFAMBOFERRTE -
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Sponsorships and Supports to Other Industry
Events

HKIRC has been the promotion partner of the annual World SME
Expo for 11 consecutive years and the International ICT Expo for
the second year which were both organised by the Hong Kong
Trade Development Council (HKTDC). We set up booths for our
accredited registrars to promote .hk domain names by providing
free one-stop service packages to local SMEs and enterprises to
build websites and seize business opportunities online.

Moreover, HKIRC supported many industry events by sponsoring
.hk domain names with free hosting services or actively promote
these events on our marketing channels. These included, but
not limited to, competition for start-ups and youth incubation
programme in IT sector, such as Cyberport Incubation
Programme, and Hong Kong Social Enterprise Challenge. We
were also the supporting organisation for Hong Kong ICT Awards
— Best Business Solution Award and Best Lifestyle Award, and
many more.

BN EMRREE

HKIRC 42 h 553 5 B BB RN T BRI/
SWE, R TERENANEEE, WAERED
feo TEBTNGNE  BEBEt+ B
i FEE AR EE | 815 RS M - HKIRC
RETEE SRR BB - 4T R AR
BRI MR BB AN NS e B ERD T i
PKISAFBRES » HLTIIR A PR AR 27 495t ~ B
R -

ItSh > HKIRC RSP RFUESD - BIANERD hk
E . BEBYRLREHATFRY  BRBMAN
HEFEWEEEE)  HRBEMAIERNL
BN ITITRNBFIEETE PINEEEBIEES
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CORPORATE LOVERNANCE
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Designated by the Government of HKSAR to administer the .hk
domain, a public resource of the Hong Kong community, HKIRC
endeavours to implement good corporate governance within the
organisation to ensure that the administration is conducted in an
open, transparent and fair manner.

Memorandum of Understanding and Designation
Agreement with the Government of HKSAR

The Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
and a Designation Agreement (DA) with the government of
HKSAR on 17 March 2010.

Consultative and Advisory Panel (CAP)

The CAP met twice on 7 June 2016 and 8 December 2016.
Advisors from different sectors have been invited to sit on the
CAP and advise HKIRC on policy issues and matters which help
HKIRC serve the local Internet community better.

BB RAMHBFHRERNARER  (FR
ERBBTRERN N2 EEEE - HKIRC
RIBRFTREH B R BEER  LUBRAT L
AR~ BRARATFHIIRETE bk g4 e

£ 45 5B I T I % 25 5T & AR MR S 8% &
REmES

HKIRC B & 82 & B 45 51T I E BUF I 2010 4
3R 17T BREERBETH (MoU) MIEELHE
& (DA)-e

FHEEE (CAP)

CAP 1220166 A 7HK 12 H 8 HARIAR
MREE | BRIRERE AR - 3 HIRC
HWEBREAESEEEREBNEEL - RIOA
AR BHRHEERBRERR -

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings (From 1 January to 31 December 2016)

EEENEZEGERLFERE (H2016FE1A1HE20165F12A3118)

Board Members

EEEME

EEFES

Board Meetings

Audit Committee
Meetings
BHEESER

Executive Committee
Meetings
HITEEEEE

%ﬂlﬁﬁ?’% ?;’%" )Sai AT (Ol ) 100% (6/6) 100% (4/4) NA

g%fg';;gis CHIN Yuk Lun 83% (5/6) 100% (3/3) 100% (3/3)
;"&éﬁ;g” Kin Man 100% (6/6) 100% (4/4) 67% (2/3)
%?éﬁzhie’(‘ EEOZ O‘Q'giﬁfg”gﬂ gr%mgf March 2016) 100% (5/5) NA 100% (2/2)
gg;;y"g e 100% (6/6) 75% (3/4) NA

%%';%;AN Kin Leung 100% (6/6) 100% (4/4) 100% (3/3)
%%g;f%cg 1'2"2"3(2' s g?f)h 2016) 100% (1) 100% (1) 100% (1/1)
g;:slgjr\%wom 100% (6/6) 50% (2/4) 0% (0/1)
%%u@éﬁ V%‘;?fggg(g" }%91 'g"aE‘l’iO; & 100% (2/2) 67% (2/3) 100% (1/1)
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REAORT OF DIRECTORS
EFREEHESEE

The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Principal place of business

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (‘the
Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Unit 501, Level 5, Core C, Cyberport 3, 100 Cyberport Road,
Hong Kong.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiary (“the
Group”) is to administer the registration system for all levels of
Internet domain names under the Hong Kong country-code top
level domain “hk" and its equivalents. This includes, among other
tasks, the development and maintenance of a self-regulatory
policy framework for the administration of Internet domain names
under the “hk" and “&#" country-code top level domains, and
providing “hk" and “&&" domain names resolution services.
The Company also promotes, for the benefit of the Hong Kong
community, a better understanding and use of the Internet
and related technology. The Company is a non-profit making
organisation undertaking the above activities in the context of a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region dated 17 March 2010.

The principal activity and other particulars of a subsidiary are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of the Group's and the Company’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 41 to 69.

Under the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum of
Association, accumulated funds of the Company are not available
for distribution to members and are to be used solely for
promotion of the objects of the Company.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFREHSEE

Financial statements (continued)

In relation to the increase in the bank balance in financial year
2016 compared with financial year 2015, the directors are
obliged to draw readers’ attention to the fact that part of the
bank balance is actually deferred registration income which can
only be realised in the future according to a clearly defined time
schedule (see note 12 to the financial statements). Also, such
increase does not indicate a trend for the coming years. The
Management and Board of the Group and the Company will
continue to manage the Group’s and the Company’s finances
with due regard to its public mission, planned institutional
changes and stakeholder expectations. These include, for
example, the financial implications arising from the Registry/
Registrar model and the need for investments in the Group’s and
the Company’s technology and support infrastructure in order
to provide business-friendly, secure and robust domain name
registration services.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$NIl (2015: HK$8,000).

Directors
The directors during the financial year were:

Prof Huang Erwin Steve
Mr Fan Kin Man

Prof Chin Yuk Lun Francis
Mr Kan Kin Leung Leo

Ms Wong Ka Ping

Mr Chan Sai Ming

Mr Ho Wai Chung Stephen
Mr Yip Yuk Fai

Mr See Chi Kwok

Mr Young Wo Sang

appointed on 16 March 2016)
appointed on 19 May 2016)
resigned on 16 March 2016)
resigned on 19 May 2016)

In accordance with Article 37 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Prof Huang Erwin Steve and Mr Fan Kin Man will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary, Hong Kong Domain
Name Registration Company Limited, during the year and up to
the date of this report are the same as the Company as set out
above.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiary
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debenture of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiary was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the vyear.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Sai Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT ALDITOR'S REPORT
B GSENRS S

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by guarantee)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiary (together “the Group”) set out on pages 41
to 69, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the company in accordance with the HKICPAs Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consoclidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibility of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concermn.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 21 March 2017
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENEEE S

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RaiEmEMEZEEER
BECFS—XNE+ZA=T—HILEE (LUEFESF)
Note 2016 2015
Bk HK$ HKS
iitad A
Revenue [=E 0] 2 37,319,196 31,329,205
Other income HibA 8 1,566,823 1,720,117
P e
Administrative and other operating expenses TERRAAEER
(23,087,229) (22,975,455)
Profit before taxation BRFEATRF 4 15,798,790 10,073,867
Income tax T8, 6(a) 98,550 26,835
Profit and total comprehensive income  AEERFIREEINEELEEE
for the year 15,897,340 10,100,702

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these financial
statements.

25 46 22 69 EMNEBAMERKRN—EH
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Consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

fra IR R
TE—NET_AS+—B (LOEESIT)

Note 2016 2015
(e HK$ HKS
it S

Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment W~ RN 7 2,710,984 851,940
Deposits firera 9 496,727 668,486
3,207,711 1,520,426

Current assets MENEE
Trade and other receivables FEMUBR TR B EL A EMGR 9 5,754,274 2,832,850
Tax recoverable A [E]FIE 13(a) 69,522 202,960
Cash and cash equivalents RENIRSEEY 10 167,289,989 154,783,458
173,113,785 157,819,268
Current liabilities mENaE

Other payables HIBENTR 1 9,849,366 10,604,302
Deferred registration income IEFE S WA 12 23,406,682 22,234,442
33,256,048 32,838,744
Net current assets MANEEFE 139,857,737 124,980,524
Total assets less current liabilities BERERRSERE 143,065,448 126,500,950

Non-current liabilities EmEasE
Deferred registration income IEFE ST WA 12 18,495,993 17,750,285
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 13(b) - 78,550
18,495,993 17,828,835

NET ASSETS BEFE 124,569,455 108,672,115
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Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
at 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REMEBIRAR ()
“EFNETZAZ—8 (LUBESIR)

Note 2016 2015
Bt HK$ HKS
it A
Representing: Rk :
Retained profits REG T 124,569,455 108,672,115

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EERN S —TE=A "+ HOELEF I3 -

21 March 2017.

Chan Sai Ming Ho Wai Chung Stephen
Chairman Director

FRAMER farfgch

FE EF

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these financial % 46 B 69 BN BAMFEHRKRNW—ELS

statements.
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ROEREER
BEF—AREF+_AZT—HILFE (LOBEIF)

Retained profits

fREG T

HK$

biitad

Balance at 1 January 2015 B 2015 & 1 B 1 HHASER 98,571,413
Change in equity for 2015: % 2015 FHIEEREH)

Profit and total comprehensive income A R 2 E AR AR 10,100,702

Balance at 31 December 2015 and 520155 12 B 31 H& 2016 £ 1 A 1 BHI4EER

1 January 2016 108,672,115
Change in equity for 2016: B2 2016 FHIETRES)

Profit and total comprehensive income Y SESE 6 L 15,897,340

Balance at 31 December 2016 B 2016 & 12 B 31 HH&EER 124,569,455

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form part of these financial
statements.

% 46 £ 69 BENNEBEAVBREN—ED
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

maREERER

BE_S—R"E+_A=Zt—RILEFE (LOEBSIT)

Note 2016 2015
BsE HK$ HKS
A A
Operating activities BELT
Profit before taxation BREL A& A 15,798,790 10,073,867
Adjustments: AR
Depreciation e 4(b) 1,029,814 743,258
Interest income FIEWA 3 (1,016,356) (1,163,684)
Operating profit before changes in EEESETAISE R
working capital 15,812,248 9,653,441
Increase in trade and other receivables FEMUAR TR B EL A FE WK AN (2,749,665) (821,889)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HAENATR CBd) /1580 (754,936) 3,606,907
Increase in deferred registration income IEZE ST A N 1,917,948 1,931,236
Cash generated from operations RERBIRE 14,225,595 14,369,695
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EWEEBFER 153,438 142,286
Net cash generated from operating RS FFIRE R
activities 14,379,033 14,611,981
Investing activities BEES
Interest received BEWFIE 1,016,356 1,163,684
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits maturing ~ [H&REHS 3 {8 A IR
after three months when placed $R1TER (3200 )/ JE (49,803,878) 38,113,804
Payment for purchase of property, plant and BB « BB KB ETER
equipment (2,888,858) (248,632)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FRA) /E%
investing activities REFHE (51,676,380) 39,028,856
Net (decrease)/increase in HEMREEEY
cash and cash equivalents (s ) /18BmEsE (87,297,347) 53,540,837
Cash and cash equivalents ®1 81 HNRE
at 1 January RIREEEY 70,253,584 16,712,747
Cash and cash equivalents 12 B 31 BWIRE
at 31 December RIREEEY 10 32,956,237 70,253,584

The notes on pages 46 to 69 form

statements.

part of these financial

25 46 22 69 EMNEBAMERKRN—EH
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1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 1(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 comprise the Company
and its subsidiary (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NP ES VS

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. None of these
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed or has
right, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are elminated in the same way as unrealised gain but only
1o the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBMSIT )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENFE I

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Office machinery and equipment 3 years

— Furniture and fixtures 3 years

— Network and computer hardware/software and
equipment 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NP ES VS

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(f)

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for indications of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset, or of the cash
generating unit to which it belongs, is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBBSIT )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENFE I

1 Significant accounting policies (continued) 1 FESEBUER (8)
() Leased assets (continued) (f) HEEE(8)

S0

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of other assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net

lease payments made.

(g) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts, except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases,
the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
recognised when there is objective evidence of
impairment and are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate where the
effect of discounting is material. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about events that have
an impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows
such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

(9)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NP ES VS

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(g) Trade and other receivables (continued)

(h)

U]

1)

Impairment losses for trade debtors included within
trade and other receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBMSIT )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENFE I

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax credits. Apart
from differences which arise on initial recognition of
assets and liabilities, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENFEE IV

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)

U]

(m)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Registration fees income
Registration fees income is recognised on a pro-
rata basis over the registration period of one to five
years. Fees received relating to future periods are
classified as deferred registration income in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENpE eIV

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

(n)

(o)

(i) Service fees income
Service fees income is recognised on an accruals
basis when the relevant service is rendered.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies and non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENFEE IV

1  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Related parties (continued)

(o) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

() The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

(i

=

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(Vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(vii)The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or the Group's
parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBBSIT )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ENFE I

2  Revenue 2 EEE
RABNEEEKASER B EIBRIESZ
(Bl T.hky B T. &) NEMSEE - A4
AEEFT B RE#E (Hhr—hH S
ENBAREBIHATMERAT ) 24t
ZEEMARFE ©

The principal activity of the Company is administrating
the registration of Internet domain names under “.hk” and
‘" country-code top level domains. The Company
provides registration of domain names through its registrars,
one of which is its wholly-owned subsidiary.

BEBRKREHSLTMRBAWALREE -
FAEBNERBSBEASERNT

Revenue represents total income from provision of domain
name registration services. The amount of each significant
category of revenue is as follows:

56

2016 2015

HK$ HKS$

biitsi] B

Registration fees FHE 36,374,753 30,334,069
Service fees RIEE 944,443 995,136
37,319,196 31,329,205

3 Otherincome HATA

2016 2015

HK$ HKS

it TS

Bank interest income SRITH BWA 1,016,356 1,163,684
Exchange gains, net FER M / B8R 1,985 3,860
Sundry income HIEUA 548,482 552,573
1,566,823 1,720,117




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

( LUBHESY )
=R
Pt ES] NS
4  Profit before taxation 4 FRFATEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRBIANRF EHIRTIIRIR ¢
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
biits ) oty
(a) Staff costs (a) BT
g . . ! ‘ *hy =2 a2
Contnlbutlons to defined contribution REMFCRIRGTEIRELR 367,795 381,021
retirement plan
Salaries, wages and other benefits e s TEREMEF) 11,638,179 12,280,092
12,005,974 12,661,113
(b) Other items (b) HIEE
Depreciation e 1,029,814 743,258
Operating lease charges in respect of REMETHENEEER ' EHEEN 2 351.975 5 305.826
premises: minimum lease payment KEB T T
Operating lease charges in respect of RERES HENSEMIGRE - &ER
equipment and facilities: minimum lease OBt 1,524,165 1,550,897
payment
Auditor's remuneration il
— audit services - TR RT 187,000 183,200
— tax services - BAISBRTS 47,500 45,000

5 Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

5 EFMME

REBEEE (ATMEE) 25 383(1) Bk (A
A (KEBEFMRER) R 25 2 BIEK

LEEMEMT

2016
HK$
i tac

2015
HKS
e

Directors’ fees EEE

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind R REYME
Discretionary bonuses BERE

Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETEIHAR
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NOTES T THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  mowessiirs oot
BTSSRI

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6 #HZaiEtaNEHMEEIERATH
of profit or loss and other comprehensive FREH:
income
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) ZEBEBNHMEEWSERATHHR
profit or loss and other comprehensive income BS:
represents:
2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
hiitsi] i
Current tax-Hong Kong Profits Tax EATRIE —HENEH
Provision for the year KEERE = 69,522
Over-provision in respect of prior year DR EEEEBR (20,000) (21,086)
(20,000) 48,436
Deferred tax IBIERIE
Qriginaﬂon and reversal of temporary T A 2R EAANED (78,550) (75.271)
differences
(98,550) (26,839)
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2016 is ZE-ANENEENEHRBERRA
calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) of the estimated FEMMGFTEIEHFEL16.5% (Z
assessable profits for the year. The Company is FT—FHF 1 16.5%) HFEKTE - IBE
exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax according to (RRAFEIERBIY 25 87 & - RATVEERR
section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance. BNEBREY -
(b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and (b) WMIEZHESFHEMNIZERARERIAE
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: HI¥TER
2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
A S
Profit before taxation FRBL B R 15,798,790 10,073,867
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZRIBRE 16.5% (2015 £F  16.5%)
calculated at 16.5% (2015 16.5%) STERBENEFINAETIR 2,606,800 1,662,188
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR RN B E (8,305) (11,863)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not 7504 T 4 b 1 7 2 g _
recognised KRB BB ISR E 100,594
Over-provision in prior years DI FEEEBRE (20,000) (21,086)
Profit exempt from profits tax (note 6(a)) ReFMNEREFR (FEE 6) (2,777,639) (1,657,192)
Others Hith - 1,118

Actual tax expense credited to profit or loss EERERAFZNEREFRIES H (98,550) (26,839)
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Bl RS AR TR St

7  Property, plant and equipment 7 ¥ -~ BE NG R

Network and

Office computer

machinery hardware/

and Furniture and software and
equipment fixtures equipment Total

SRRy

/N W Y
e iEntE HREMKE Sy HBEt
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Vitssd Vitssd Vitsst Vitssd

Cost: |5%

At 1 January 2016 201618 1H 320,915 1,225,315 13,527,710 15,073,940
Additions BE 2,600 — 2,886,258 2,888,858
Disposals BE (1,576) — (208,043) (209,619)
At 31 December 2016 R20164E 12 A 31 H 321,939 1,225,315 16,205,925 17,753,179

Accumulated depreciation: ZEFHFE :

At 1 January 2016 n20164F181H 259,947 1,168,286 12,793,767 14,222,000
Charge for the year REFTE 26,261 40,514 963,039 1,029,814
Written back on disposals i El (1,576) - (208,043) (209,619)
At 31 December 2016 R2016&E 12831 H 284,632 1,208,800 13,548,763 15,042,195
Net book value: IREFE :

At 31 December 2016 MW20164£ 128 31H 37,307 16,515 2,657,162 2,710,984
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7

(LOEBST )

Property, plant and equipment (continued) 7 % - MEMRE (8)
Network and
Office computer
machinery hardware/
and Furniture and software and
equipment fixtures equipment Total
FEEYS S
YN WEf4 / B
W NEE HEMKRE P B et
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
s biitad biitasd biitasd
Cost: s
At 1 January 2015 R20154F181H 307,905 1,220,405 14,362,705 15,891,015
Additions HE 20,460 10,310 217,862 248,632
Disposals RE (7,450) (5,400) (1,052,857) (1,065,707)
At 31 December 2015 R 2015412831 H 320,915 1,225,315 13,527,710 15,073,940
Accumulated depreciation: ZRFHFE :
At 1 January 2015 H2015%F181H 233,564 1,132,820 13,178,065 14,544,449
Charge for the year RKEEFE 33,833 40,866 668,559 743,258
Written back on disposals raa=tisge e (7,450) (5,400) (1,052,857) (1,065,707)
At 31 December 2015 R20154F 12831 H 259,947 1,168,286 12,793,767 14,222,000
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12831 H 60,968 57,029 733,943 851,940
Investment in a subsidiary 8 RMBASIMIEE
The Company's investment in a subsidiary was fully impaired E_F—NFERE - REEAAR AW E2EE
during the year ended 31 December 2014 based on an MY - AABREBEATMNRERE
assessment of its recoverable amount. At 31 December BE MRTF—XRFTA=1T—H &=
2016, the directors carried out an assessment of the SR FEBD A MR E RN AT I o ZiRa 8
recoverable amount of the investment in a subsidiary. 1T o RFMANTE - REBRERE
Based on their review, no reversal of impairment losses was TREEITEE o
recognised during the year.
Percentage
of issued
Particulars capital directly
Place of incorporation of issued held by the
Name of company and operation capital Company Principal activity
TREEE
ERITRA BHENERT
NE)EHE Bl AN Ed Sk HIFEE BAESL TERH
Hong Kong Domain Name Hong Kong 2 shares 100% Provision of “hk” and *. & "
Registration Company Limited domain name registration
services
BB ERAR &5 2 fimak 100% Rt Thky & TLEBE B4
TR
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9

(LUBIESZ )

Trade and other receivables 9 YR E MUK
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it B
Trade receivables FEWRR TR 71,133 250,898
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables &4 ~ TANERIE K E fthFEWGER 6,179,868 3,250,438
6,251,001 3,501,336
The amount of the Group's trade and other receivables 2&%.%3@7‘ Efﬁﬂﬁ(@ﬁﬁ@wtﬁﬁﬁﬁ
expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after B FE WL BR SR & B D FE MR SR & 496,727
more than one year is $496,727 (2015: $668,486). All of gt (Z | — A £ :668, 486 JgT) ° K
the other trade and other receivables are expected to be EEMNEMATBERERETRNAE {ﬂj &
recovered or recognised as expenses within one vear. WRBEEE—FAK @ =R R

X -

(@) Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly. At 31 December
2016 and 2015, no trade receivables were individually
determined to be impaired.

(b) Trade receivables that are not impaired

Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 15(a).

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

(a) FEWERTFRAVHEIE

FEWER SR AR (B B 18 5% R 2 AR AR AT

#%  BEARERBWEIFIAR AT EE

PHRER  BESRESERNHEE

WHRAR - R_FB—ARFE+_A=1+—

B BE (Z2—0F  8)) BIEKR
FRME R EERBUE ©

(b) REREREBIERR
FEWIRAER HARE B =1TRA

2 - AREEEBORNWEMFIER
FIRHEE 15() -

FE1E A ﬁ%ﬁ—fﬂﬁ?i’]?\%ﬁtﬁ s (R
ERELERFARIROTANT -

2016 2015

HK$ HK$

it S

Neither past due nor impaired RI8 B ARBE A FEUSBR R 53,830 98,380
Less than 1 month past due BEAANE®E 1 @R 17,303 151,348
1 to 3 months past due BHpEE 1 EAE 3EA - =
More than 3 months past due EHAEA 3 @A - 1,170
17,303 152,518

71,133 250,898

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers with no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
o a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are stil considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

KA BARE BUEEBENEY K2R
MR R HNE P AR -

EaENERER BN BRI R
AEBZ EER I RIFHOBIRS

BE - RIELIERIRE > SBERR

HRNEEEEWMEREE  MER
BRI R AR 28 E - H bR

'E?iL‘E%ﬁ%E‘l‘Eﬁ@%éﬁ AREE

WIS LSRR (S M
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10 Cash and cash equivalents 10 IRENIREEHEY
2016 2015
HK$ HKS
ki) A5

Bank deposits maturing after three months GEERA =8B 2 RITER
when placed 134,333,752 84,529,874

Cash at bank and in hand (cash and cash RITERNRE (FERESRERATHR
equivalents in the consolidated cash flow ~ ©RIRESZEY)

32,956,237 70,253,684
statement)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated #ra M IEARRERNIE S NIRSEEY

statement of financial position 167,289,989 154,783,458

11 Other payables 11 EHAhEM
2016 2015
HK$ HKS
Viitsi] B
Accrued charges and other creditors FERTE B R EAAET TR 6,068,664 5,863,904
Advances received [ GENNEN 3,780,702 4,740,398

9,849,366 10,604,302

All of the other payables are expected to be settled within Frea BEMENRIEFSE—FEREN -
one year.
12 Deferred registration income 12 RFEFFHURA
At 31 December 2016, the deferred registration income R_FB—A"F+_A=+—H ' Bk
expected to be recognised as income is as follows: AFERTER TS SR ARAT -
2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
ke B
Within 1 year 1HERN 23,406,682 22,234,442
After 1 year but within 2 years 1 F&EB 2 FER 9,133,466 8,769,584
After 2 years but within 5 years 2 1B 5 FR 8,630,118 8,246,730
After 5 years 5 FE 732,409 733,971

18,495,993 17,750,285

41,902,675 39,984,727
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13 Income tax in the consolidated statement of 13 FEEEABERMTNFEH
financial position

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) REBERRKRATHRERIES:
of financial position represents:

2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
it s
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the AEEFBRISREE _ 69502
year '
Provisional Profits Tax paid ENEHRNEH (69,522) (272,482)
Tax recoverable A EFIE (69,522) (202,960
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) EERELHEEENERE:
The component of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities AEECERAEEEBERERNIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ERIE (EE) / BEWARSBDSN
position and the movements during the year are as REEEEUT :
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Future
the related benefits of
depreciation tax losses Total
BHAERETE HRIESIEN
R ERHiE FRIR U £t st
HK$ HK$ HK$
ik Vit s
At 1 January 2015 P 201541818 153,821 - 153,821
Credited to profit or loss s AER (75,271) — (75,271)
At 31 December 2015 R2015%F 128 31 H 78,550 - 78,550
At 1 January 2016 R2016&F 1A 1H 78,550 - 78,550
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss 308/ (it A) 8 313,202 (391,752) (78,550)
At 31 December 2016 #2016 412 B 31 A 391,752 (391,752) -
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: (c) REBHEERIEEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in RIEMIEE 1) FTEIEETECR  AEE
note 1(k), the Group has not recognised deferred tax W R RE BT 5 E518 609,661 THY
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of $609,661 EERIBEE ERRNATEEBRISHHE
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against LEBRTESEENBSEBIREKER
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the PR A AT REMAR K - ZBIBIERT
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do B EB A ESIEH -

not expire under the current tax legislation.
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14

15

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to serve the Internet community of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, as well as the
global Internet community, in relation to the administration of
the “hk” and “&#" country-code top-level domain.

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
equity.

The Group's capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed. Adjustments are made to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Group,
to the extent that these do not conflict with the directors’
fiduciary duties towards the Group or the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group was not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements in either the current or the prior year.

Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash and deposits with banks and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and exposures 1o these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and deposits with banks are placed
with major financial institutions.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These take
into account the customer’s past payments history,
financial position and other factors. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date of billings.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

14

16

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBBSIT )

ErEE

FEEEREANTZENRREREHR
FERE  BFHALMEBATERITHE
RERNEERETERETEMRIRRES
(BN bk, o W& ) VMR E AR -

FEEL TER , RERERIATEEBER
e

FEESEMRAMNEREARE  WER
ERESHASENIEATEAES (2
ARG HRENEER - REHEARN
AEEB R ENCER N NEZMARE
ALRHE o

FAEEEAFES LFEHBARINER] L
HERRERTRIR

MEEREENERTENORER
AEEREEREBBRENERZEE  ME
BELMINERR - ANEEEE mRIERA
ELE BB RREEBRMNEBBES
ZHIELERAVEIBT o

(a) EEREE
AEENEERREIEREESMIR
TR DURBUORR R AL EGR
EEEHEEBR  WIRFERE
ERNFEERR

AEEMRSMRITEARFRARE
SRR

AEEEHMEHRFBERARXKTEE
SHENEFETEENE - EEFME
TEFBEEEIERNVTH LI
BN MEEEFEMENKE
BiE- A5E-RHET0EMEE
HleZ—RERT  AEREVESE
B RAAIER R o
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15 Financial risk management and fair values of
financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, there is no
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade and
other receivables from third party customers.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of cash and deposits with banks
and trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

All financial liabilities as disclosed in the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position are
required to be settled within one year or on demand.
The total contractual undiscounted cash flows of these
financial liabilittes equal their carrying amounts on the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risks through
certain transactions that are dominated in the United
States dollars ("USD”). As the Hong Kong dollar
("HKD”) is pegged to the USD, the Group considers
the risk of movements in exchange rate between the
HKD and the USD to be insignificant.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2015.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBMSIT )

15 MBEEEERER T RNARERE

(ﬂ
(a)

|

FERRE (&)

FERWERFTH » AEERE=ZSE
FRESTNEERR

AEEMAZNEERR LRAEE
BEXRPHRITER - BURIRFAE
fBEKGR - AERERERMEMAEE
PEREEFEZEEERAVER o

mENEE RS
REBMBURZ E # BB IR A TE
MRBESHR  LERERTEN
REFR  mERHESERANRE
BEEHEKR -

REEGEMFEREIBEENESH
BEHAEN —FRAHEEREA -
RIB—RELR_F-—HF+_H
=t—R  EFEEREENFTARST
BReMNEMNHESNERESHE

S LR
REBERET—LLIETHENRS
MZAEESMNERER - HRBEERTT
B NEBBIEERRTERAR
SHRERES) -

LAREENE
RIB-RNER_F-—RF+_AR
=t—B  AEEMBREATEHE

BREE -
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16

17

Operating lease commitments 16

At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

(LOEBST )

IEETEERIE
RIZ—AE+"A=+—H ' ~EERE
R S RSN R B E e
mF

2016 2015
HK$ HKS$
A B
Premises BF
Within 1 year 1HER 2,213,354 2,303,210
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FEBELER 3,724,027 287,901
5,937,381 2,591,111
Equipment and facilities NG
Within 1 year 1HER 1,469,448 1,185,846
After 1 year but within 5 years 1EBBELER 2,109,515 1,638,497
3,578,963 2,824,343

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of premises
and items of internet facilities under short-term operating
lease. The leases typically run for an initial period of two
to four years, at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

Material related party transactions 17

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements during the year,
the Group entered into the following material related parties
transactions:

FEERECEEHEEERET LR
=i BREE— RIS HPMEENE
e SRR ZETIE RN B G -
FAKEHEH ARSI ERSE -

EXRERRS

BRI RFTIR BRI 2 KGRI A5
ERFNEEBBIET TIIEARS

2016 2015
HK$ HK$
it S
Key management personnel, including directors: EHEEE @ BFEES !
— Short-term employee benefits - BHEERA 3,231,015 4,215,238




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

on 21 March 2017

BEERR_F—tHF=R AT -

( LUBHESY )
B ER TS Y 5
~ X2 =]
18 Company-level statement of financial position 18 ZAATZEIFERRR
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Vit B
Non-current assets EmENEE
Deposits & 496,727 = |
Current assets mENEE
Trade receivables FEURBR TR 10,000 148,818
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT IR R ELA U R 917,853 442,222
Amount due from a subsidiary Al N EENEIENE] 1,886,275 1,008,347
Cash and deposits with banks RERIBITHER 158,570,491 140,856,056
161,384,619 142,455,443
Current liabilities 2= it
Other payables HAbEN 6,621,566 7,482,452
Deferred registration income IRFE WA 16,851,361 15,091,937
23,472,927 22,674,389
Net current assets MAEEFE 137,911,692 119,881,054
Total assets net current liabilities EELRERTEEE 138,408,419 119,881,054
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred registration income IRIE ST 13,004,389 11,311,200
NET ASSETS BEEE 125,404,030 108,569,854
Representing: Rk :
Retained profits REZiEF 125,404,030 108,569,854

Chan Sai Ming Ho Wai Chung Stephen
Chairman Director

FRARAA fajfZop

e EFE
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19 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2016 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOBBSIT )

#EZFT—ANF+_A=+—HIt
FEEBMERAREMNISET - #
R RO REEENRE

BEAMBHRETIREY  TESMAS
EREMREE_F—AF+_A=t—HL
FEERER @ TBEAT BRI ERMN
ZIRERTHIATER] - BLERE(LBE TS
AJREEEAREEBENIAR ¢

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

LT BHEAE

Pkt 3Ll

R EES

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash (BB 2sHER]) 58 7 ST BEREXR: 1 January 2017
flows: Disclosure initiative T E “F—tH—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 16, Leases

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have a significant impact on the
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed
its assessment, further impacts may be identified in due
course and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where
there are alternative approaches allowed under the new
standards. The Group does not intend to early adopt any of
these amendments or new standards.

(CEBGEHERD 512 SAMERT - FTEH
RARERERERELHIAEE

(BEMBREEA) Bo% "EHTH,

(EBMBREER) 8155 " REREP
EIEIRvACYS]:NL NS

(BEEMBRELER) F 165 "HE

1 January 2017
—F—+tHF—H—H

1 January 2018
“F-N\FE—FB—H
1 January 2018
F-N\F—H—H
1 January 2019
2—NF—R—H

REE AR SER] PR RN B R IE
FHREAMERNTE < 25 FAKECHT
MR EARE T E AR H M BRKRERE
REE - BRAZENE—SFRNTX
Al o INASKEHARTTRER S - RS
BN EERHRBAE—SEE  WRFHOR
ERZEHREER A RRIRERKRERZ
SIRERREHR]EABERNTTEA A
REABBES EFERZERE - A5E
BRI ERFRNEMHER G ERl -
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19 Possible impact of amendments, new 19 HEZS—XE1+>A=+—H1L
standards and interpretations issued but not FEEEHEMARENHMSET ~
yet effective for the year ended 31 December HHIRREUEEENTE (8)
2016 (continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (EEMEREER) £ 1657 "HE,
As disclosed in note 1(f), currently the Group classifies leases FRNFEE 1(F) ik s AEEENHEE

into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessor and others as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, the Group will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases
when it is the lessee under the lease. Instead, subject to
practical expedients, the Group will be required to account for
all leases of more than 12 months in a similar way to current
finance lease accounting.

The application of the new accounting model is expected to
lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement of
profit or loss over the period of the lease.

As disclosed in note 16, at 31 December 2016 the Group'’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases amounted to $5,937,381 and $3,578,963 for
properties and other assets respectively, the majority of which
is payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date.
Some of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised
as lease liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets,
once HKFRS 16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform
a more detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating lease commitments
on adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for any
leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

HERRENERCEHEE  LRERRR
SN EHEETYPE TR - AEBH)
(E AT A R AT SIARL) -

—BRMNEBMBRELERNE 165% &%
EERFEAREIBE)BERERKE
HE - R ZATEEENRR - A5E
EREREFEEEEeT AR ENRERS
SETRETFEL I AT EANK °

AR SR B EENEESE
FTigmn » R ERA RN B R
D) H%F'EIE] °

AANTEE 16 ATINEE - R—F—R"F+_H
=t—H0  FAEERAARGEKEHESAT
XN EMEEN B RRERENTRD B
# 5,937,381 7T 2 3,578,963t » HA K
MABERBEBRR-—ERAFAXM -
It —BRWERBMHEREENE 165
ATZSHAAREAERREERER - WH
HRECRREEE - KERBATEEEN
A K L3R By B R AN E B R T 3R 5 2 R
216 SRHIR 2RI M S AR LE AR TR AV 2 Bl
RYBFHREER  NEBRAETE R
MDA BERRME BB R EERS
16 SR EREREMELENTEENE
ERYEHR -
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF AROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

sHl IS R E {th FE X

for the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_F—RFtT_A=+T—HLFE (LUEEIIFR)

The Company

¥ /N |
2016 2015
HK$ HK$
Vit S
Revenue g
Registration fees HHMER 29,244,073 22,255,132
Service fees o= 491,940 457,284
29,736,013 22,712,416
Other income EHARA
Dividend income & EUA — 1,300,000
Bank interest income RITHF SWAN 965,962 1,091,789
Sundry income HEIEW 373,770 383,950
Exchange gain/(loss), net ERFWA / (E18) 339 (1,103)
1,340,071 0774636
Administrative and other operating expenses TR EAES SRS
Advertising EEER (1,110,499) (1,042,324)
Auditors’ remuneration BTN < (98,500) (96,600)
Bank charges BITIE (233,922) (296,818)
Call centre and data centre monitoring services BE AL REIRE R RS (1,259,635) (936,980)
Contribution and membership fees == (140,653) (143,584)
Entertainment BNEEE B (23,896) (20,433)
Insurance REREA (64,392) (68,810)
Leasing payment for fixed assets EEEEHRENK (632,220) (426,908)
Legal and professional fees FREEERKEER (626,116) (432,798
License fees IR ER (70,092) (44,053)
Office cleaning MAEFRER (21,903) (19,237)
Overseas conferences BINERER (7,946) (9,684)
Postage and courier BE NMRIRE R (2,153) (6,819
Printing and stationery ERIAXEER (31,737) (37,048)
Recruitment REER (69,372) (21,996)
Rent, rates and management fees e EMNEEER (1,708,665) (1,606,951)
Repairs and maintenance HIEREER (690,489) (606,815)
Staff costs BTHAK (6,585,190) (7,455,673)
Sundry expenses HIBERA (32,136) (84,742)
Tape storage WS EER (16,388) (15,812)
Tax service fee FIEARISE A (18,500) (17,500
Telephone and data line ERENEBEERER (696,328) (670,696)
Travelling ZIRERA (74,827) (55,548)
Utilities NHBHEER (26,349) (26,633)
(14,241,908) (14,143,462)
Profit for the year FEF 16,834,176 11,343,590




CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEER

Registered Address and Contact Information

Address: Unit 501, Level 5, Core C, Cyberport 3,
100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: 2319 2303

Fax: 2319 2626

Email: info@hkirc.hk

Website: www.hkirc.nk

Board of Directors

Mr. Simon CHAN Sai Ming (Chairman)

Prof. Francis CHIN Yuk Lun

Mr. Eric FAN Kin Man

Mr. Stephen HO Wai Chung (from 16 March 2016)
Prof. Erwin HUANG  (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Leo KAN Kin Leung (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Felix SEE (till 16 March 2016)

Miss Ping WONG

Mr. Lento YIP Yuk Fai (from 19 May 2016)

Mr. YOUNG Wo Sang (Deputy Chairman) (till 19 May 2016)

Acting Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Simon CHAN Sai Ming

Auditor
KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Company Secretary

Deodand (Services) Limited

Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corp. Ltd.
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